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Cuffern

SM894213               OS 25” first edition  XXII.9   (1889)            Roch

Cadw listed mansion.

Late C18 house for John Rees Stokes c1770.Altered after fire in 1899.

1963 (now an hotel) listing describes panelled room.
1988 (now a nursing home) the panelling has disappeared. Listed “notwithstanding alterations”) 

A watercolour of the 1830’s shows a parapet in front of the roof
Coach house and cottages (modernised) for sale 4th August 1999 by Evans Roach.

Also the mansion/nursing home.

Herein are seven photographs of memorials in Roch church (October 1999).

One memorial, difficult to photgraph, states:

Erected by Mrs Catherine Elizabeth Stokes

in memory of her husband

Col. George Warren Stokes

who died at Netherwood near Tenby

on 2nd July 1873 aged 65 years

                               ...................his second son

Harry Fortune Stokes

.......died 1863 aged 20 years

sacred also to the memory of the above named

Catherine Elizabeth Stokes

..........January 1883
09.09.1999   Approaching from the south one crosses Cuffern bridge which must have been regarded as the entrance to the estate. Overgrown laurels at each side and the woodland to the right seems to have been coppiced earlier in this century. Explore further?

The lodge, described as a cottage in the 1918 sale notice, is now a very modern house. Some beech trees in the hedgebank as one travels north. 

The field to the right was evidently “parkland”. The northernmost tree (under the C of Cuffern) is a lime and survives. Do any of the others?

The formal (front, south) entrance to the grounds proper has stone piers, stuccoed and painted white (1). The house (2) is nicely framed by the beech trees of the drive. The trees form a triangular copse on the left and a “hedge” to the right  with laurels and rhododendron; the northmost beech is coppery colour. 

The irregular-shaped lawn to the right has modern, low walls and there are various low-walled structures containing plants. No sign of the sun dial! The conservatory, the old building that it backed and the buildings adjoining north have all been swept away in the modernisings.

The lawn is bounded on the east  by the southern part of the west wall of the kitchen garden.

A flat, stone arched doorway at the top end of the lawn. To the right is a dog’s modern grave (3) of some formality partly in the shade of a magnolia tree planted almost 2m from the wall; then a coppiced (?) apple with fruit and a very large mass of rose (should have taken cutting!) and a wide spreading Q. ilex away from the corner.

There is a shelter belt along the south wall up to 20m deep containing rhododenrons and cherry laurels. A deep (c1.5m) ditch with flowing water marks the field boundary; it has almost vertical sides (esp the garden side) and a flat bottom of more than a meter width.

A flat, stone arched, doorway at about 5m up three steps..

A very big sweet chestnut beyond which passage was difficult.

(returning to the west wall.....) a wide entrance has been made only 2m from the north corner.Each side has been well finished and the wall at the corner has been repaired. One can see near the corner that the north wall, at least, was lined with reddish stones laid almost like bricks (4) and the outside built with a grey (limestone?) rubblestone but in neat courses. There is a non-overlapping coping which looks like slate. It is difficult to advance along the outside of the north wall. In the NW corner is the stone shed marked but ruinous. A longer stone shed, also beyond use, runs perhaps 5m along the inside of the west wall. Plaster remains on the north wall where the glasshouse was. Much of the inside is inpenetratable blackberry and nettle. There is a dump near the centre of old machinery and such.

(going across the top of the field in front of the house......) a lime still stands. In the shelter belt, east of the sweet chestnut, are two substantial trees, thought by GH to be Robinia pseudoacacia, (5,6 and 7), several oak, ash and sycamore.

Unable to go further. Not able to find the owner of the chalet park (which is on enclosure 939. He also owns a strip of the woodland to the east of the walled garden.

The coach-house stables have been converted and much altered to dwellings - a main house and two cottages. (see sale details). Even on the 1888 map the shape is unusual - as if the road had, even then, been diverted across the courtyard.

At the PRO is a sale catalogue of 1918 when the last Stokes (Mrs Emma Rhys Stokes Massey put it up for sale, There was 94 acres of farmland and four acres of grounds. The auctioneer was Wilson and Co of London W1 and the solicitor was Eaton Evans (Haverfordwest). The lawn with its sundial is mentioned. (8). 

Documents in file:

OS 25” first edition map

OS 25” second edition map

Cadw listing of mansion

Sale notice 1918  photograph (PRO)

Sale brochure 1999

Sale brochure (coach-house) 1999

Sale report Western Telegraph 2000

Photographs of mansion and surrounds

Photographs of memorials in Roch church

Photograph late 19C of mansion and staff

Sale Brochure 2003 (Coast and Country Estates)

An advance notice of sale (November 2003) mentions a campanile. The brochure itself refers to the ruins of a former bell tower in the 3/4acre walled garden. Photograph.

Of the features in the RCAMW datbase, the following survive:

br

cd

lo        much modernised and altered.

p         a field with one, albeit splendid, lime tree.

po?

wg

wold

the following have disappeared completely:

cons

gh

pt

sd

there are in addition:

gate

la

Gazeteer:

Mansion lately a nursing home, coach-house and lodge converted to dwellings. Entrance, drive and walled garden. Woodland with interesting trees and shrubs.

2007 Guest house.  Jayne and Julian Rutter
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